
Meeting of:  Cabinet
Date: Tuesday 24th July 2018
Time: 6.15 pm.
Venue: Hollingworth - (Room 108BC) - Number One 

Riverside

This agenda gives notice of items to be considered in private as required by
Regulations 5 (4) and (5) of The Local Authorities (Executive Arrangements)
(Meetings and Access to Information) (England) Regulations 2012.

Item 
No.

AGENDA Page No

1.  APOLOGIES 

To receive any apologies for absence. 

2.  DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 

Members are required to declare any disclosable pecuniary, personal 
or personal and prejudicial interests they may have and the nature of 
those interests relating to items on this agenda and/or indicate if S106 
of the Local Government Finance Act 1992 applies to them.    

3.  URGENT ITEMS OF BUSINESS 

To determine whether there are any additional items of business 
which, by reason of special circumstances, the Chair decides should 
be considered at the meeting as a matter of urgency. 

4.  ITEMS FOR EXCLUSION OF PUBLIC AND PRESS 

To determine any items on the agenda, if any, where the public are to 
be excluded from the meeting. 

5.  MINUTES 3 - 8

To consider the minutes of the meeting of Cabinet held on 26th June 
2018. 

6.  OBJECTIONS TO TRAFFIC ORDER - BLACKPITS ROAD & 
EDENFIELD ROAD, ROCHDALE 

9 - 29

Cabinet will be requested to consider objections to a proposed Traffic 
Order at  Blackpits Road and Edenfield Road, Rochdale. 

7.  APPROVAL OF REVISED STATEMENT OF COMMUNITY 
INVOLVEMENT FOR PUBLIC CONSULTATION - ITEM 
WITHDRAWN 

Public Document Pack



Cabinet will be requested to consider a revised statement of 
Community Involvement for Public Consultation. 

8.  DRAFT ALLOCATIONS DEVELOPMENT PLAN DOCUMENT - 
CONSULTATION 

30 - 33

Cabinet will be requested to consider the Draft Allocations 
Development Plan Document. 

9.  CAPITAL INVESTMENT IN SCHOOLS 2018/19 34 - 42

Cabinet will be requested to consider capital spend funded by a 
specific Department of Education Grant to enable the development 
and growth of Autistic Spectrum Condition (ASC) schools’ provision 
within the Rochdale Borough. 

10.  SAVINGS PROGRAMME 2019/20 TO 2020/21 43 - 49

Cabinet will be requested to consider Savings Proposals for 2019/20 to 
2020/21. 

11.  EXCLUSION OF PRESS AND PUBLIC 

To consider that the press and public be excluded from the remaining 
part of the meeting pursuant to Section 100(A) 4 of the Local 
Government Act 1972 on the grounds that discussions may involve the 
likely disclosure of exempt information as defined in the provisions of 
Part 1 of Schedule 12A to the Local Government Act 1972 and public 
interest would not be served in publishing the information.  

12.  SAVINGS PROGRAMME 2019/20 TO 2020/21 50 - 128

Cabinet will be requested to consider Savings Proposals for 2019/20 to 
2020/21. 

Cabinet Member

Councillor Iftikhar Ahmed Councillor Daalat Ali
Councillor John Blundell Councillor Allen Brett
Councillor Neil Emmott Councillor Janet Emsley
Councillor Kieran Heakin Councillor Liam O'Rourke
Councillor Sara Rowbotham

For more information about this meeting, please contact 
Alison James – Governance and Committee Services 

Telephone: 01706 924711  
E-mail: committee.services@rochdale.gov.uk   



CABINET

MINUTES OF MEETING
Tuesday, 26th June 2018

PRESENT:  Councillor Brett (in the Chair); Councillors Iftikhar Ahmed, 
Blundell, Neil Emmott, Emsley, O’Rourke and Rowbotham.

OFFICERS:  s. Rumbelow (Chief Executive), G. Hopper (Director of 
Children’s Services), M. Widdup (Director of Neighbourhoods), J. Searle 
(Director of Economy, D. Wilcock (Assistant Director – Legal, Governance and 
Workforce), D. Bowler (Assistant Director – Place), J. Murphy (Deputy Chief 
Finance Officer), F. Davies (Children’s Services), D. Brierley, D. Beck 
(Neighbourhoods Directorate) and P. Thompson (Resources Directorate).  

ALSO IN ATTENDANCE:  Councillor Robinson, Councillor Susan Smith, 
Councillor Taylor and 15 members of the public. 

APOLOGIES
11 Apologies for absence were received from Councillors Daalat Ali and 
Heakin. 

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST
12 There were no declarations of interests.

URGENT ITEMS OF BUSINESS
13 There were no urgent items of business for the Cabinet to consider.

ITEMS FOR EXCLUSION OF PUBLIC AND PRESS
14 There were no confidential items of business for the Cabinet to 
consider. 

MINUTES
15 Decision:

That the minutes of the meeting of Cabinet held 29th May 2018 be approved 
and signed as a correct record.

ROCHDALE FREE SCHOOL PROPOSALS
16 The Cabinet considered a report of the Director of Children’s Services 
that provided details of two Free School proposals to be submitted by the 
Altus Education Partnership to the Department for Education to be opened in 
Rochdale Borough in 2020 and 2022.

Alternatives considered:
An alternative route of opening a new Free School was under the Free School 
Presumption route. In this process the Council would be required to fund the 
building of a new school and then invite academy trusts to bid to run the 
school. The approximate cost of building a six form entry school was reported 

Page 3

Agenda Item 5



as £18million. Due to uncertainties in capital grant for pupil planning purposes 
and other priorities, part of this funding may need to be funded by Prudential 
Borrowing, up to £10million.  The annual revenue cost of this would be 
£550,000 over 40 years chargeable to the Council’s base budget.

The Council would also be required to fund the set-up costs including 
furnishing and staff wages until the school was self-funding, estimated at 
between £0.5m to £1m over five years; this would be funded by Dedicated 
Schools Grant (DSG). 

For a school opened under the Free School Presumption route, the Secretary 
of State’s delegated officer, the Regional School Commissioner, would decide 
the winner of the bidding process. The Council would be able to advice on its 
preferred bidder.

Decision:
1. The Cabinet agrees to support the submission by the Altus Education 

Partnership to the Department for Education to open a free school in 
Middleton in 2020.

2. The Cabinet agrees to support the submission by the Altus Education 
Partnership to the Department for Education to open a second free 
school in Pennines Township in 2022.

3. The Cabinet approves the lease of a parcel of land at Littleborough 
Playing fields to the Altus Education Partnership for its use for a new 
secondary Free school with two caveats; firstly that if the Secretary of 
State’s consent is not given for the lease or secondly if feasibility 
assessments show the site is too costly to develop, then the lease of 
land is approved at Rutherford Park on Wardle Road. 

4. The Cabinet considers that any infrastructure costs, external to the 
proposed school site, will form a capital bid as part of the Council’s 
future capital programme making.

Reason for the decision:
A report to the Cabinet’s meeting that was held on 24th October 2017 entitled 
“The Need for Extra Year 7 School Places 2017-2027” detailed the predicted 
need for extra capacity in Year 7 secondary school places and had asked the 
Cabinet to note that two new schools would be needed to open in the 
borough; one in 2020 in Middleton and the second in the Rochdale/Pennines 
area in 2022.

The council had a statutory duty to offer a school place to every child living in 
the borough and consequently has a duty to plan for the predicted demand. 
On 11th May 2018 the Department for Education announced that a round of 
new Free Schools would be centrally funded under a bidding process which 
would open on 18th June 2018. Rochdale borough had been named in the 
announcement as meeting the location criteria for the bid.

The Rochdale Sixth Form College academy trust, the Altus Education 
Partnership, with support from the Rochdale Borough Council, had been 

Page 4



developing the framework to open one new secondary school in Middleton 
and second in the Rochdale/Pennines area.

The Cabinet at its meeting on 19th December 2017 approved the release of a 
parcel of Council owned land within the Bowlee site to be leased to the Altus 
Education Partnership for the building of a new Secondary School in 
Middleton. A similar parcel of land is also needed for the second school.

Due to the general election that was held in 2017 there had been a delay of 
18 months in the opening of the current new Free School bidding round by the 
Department for Education. This was likely to cause a significant risk that the 
new school in Middleton would not be opened on time, with the effect that 
there is a possibility of not having enough Secondary school places available 
in September 2020. Any subsequent delays by the Department for Education 
would mean that similar issues would occur with any second bid submitted in 
a later bidding round. For this reason Cabinet approval was sought to give 
support to the Altus Education Partnership to bid for a second Secondary Free 
School in the Pennines Township in this bidding round. A site needed to be 
named in the submission document.
Eligible for Call-in: Yes.

DELEGATED APPROVALS 2017/18
17 The Cabinet considered a report of the Chief Finance Officer which 
provided details of approvals of spend under delegated powers in relation to 
Revenue and Capital Schemes funded by additional grants or income during 
2017/18.

Alternatives considered: 
The item was presented for information purposes, therefore no alternatives 
were considered.

Decision: 
That the he approval of spending under delegated powers made by Services 
during 2017/18 be noted.

Reason for decision:
Financial regulations required the reporting to Cabinet of schemes that had 
been approved under delegated powers.
Eligible for Call-in: No – item is for information only.

FINANCE UPDATE REPORT 2018/19
18 The Cabinet considered a report of the Chief Finance Officer that 
provided details of the 2018/19 Budget position for Capital, Revenue, Savings 
and Collection Fund as at the end of May 2018.

In considering the report the Chair referred to paragraph 4.1.4 of the 
submitted report requesting that the Director of Economy provide a report to a 
future meeting, updating Cabinet Members on the Rochdale Market budget. A 
Member sought clarification on the income that was available to the Council 

Page 5



via highways sponsorship requesting that this matter be not put forward as a 
budget pressure. 

Alternatives considered:
None: not reporting on financial performance could put at risk the 
achievement of the Council’s Medium Term Financial Plan. Effective budget 
management was critical to ensuring that financial resources were spent in 
line with the agreed budgets and were targeted towards the Council’s 
priorities. Monitoring enables the early identification of variations against the 
plan and facilitates timely corrective action.

Resolved:
1. The financial update be noted.
2. The Director of Economy be requested to submit a report to a future 

meeting, updating Cabinet Members on the Rochdale Market budget.
3. The Cabinet resolves that highways sponsorship will not be put forward 

as a budget pressure.

Reason for resolution:
The recommendations were presented so as to keep Cabinet Members 
updated on the financial position of the authority, as effective budget 
management was critical to ensuring financial resources were spent in line 
with the budget and were targeted towards the Council’s priorities. Monitoring 
enabled the early identification of variations against the plan and facilitates 
timely corrective action. The submitted report provided an overview of the 
forecast 2018/19 financial position for the Council and focused on the position 
as at the end of May 2018.
Eligible for call-in: yes.

BUDGET 2019/20 TO 2021/22 GUIDELINES, TIMETABLE AND PUBLIC 
ENGAGEMENT
19 The Cabinet considered a report of the Chief Finance Officer 
recommending approval of the budget guidelines, timetable and methods of 
public engagement to be used in preparing the detailed 2019/20 budget and 
provisional budgets for 2020/21 and 2021/22.

Alternatives considered: 
The Council is legally obliged to set a balanced budget and the report sets out 
a planning process for the budget including details of the assumptions used in 
the preparation of the budget to ensure they are agreed, reasonable and 
consistently applied by all services.

Decision: 
1. That the proposed budget timetable as detailed at Appendix 1 of the 

submitted report, be approved.
2. That the revenue assumptions as detailed at paragraph 4.2 of the 

submitted report be noted and incorporated into the budget setting 
process.

3. That the revenue and capital budget principles referred to in paragraph 
4.4. of the submitted report be noted.

Page 6



4. The proposed methods of public engagement outlined in paragraph 4.5 
of the submitted report be included as part of the 2019/20 budget 
setting process.

Reason for decision: 
Under the Budget & Policy Framework Cabinet is required to approve the 
proposed guidelines, timetable and methods of public engagement for setting 
the 2019/20 Budget and Provisional Budgets for 2020/21 and 2021/22 by 
September each year.
Eligible for call-in: No – the item is being referred to the Corporate Overview 
and Scrutiny Committee for consideration.

EXCLUSION OF PRESS AND PUBLIC
20 Decision:
That the Press and Public be excluded from the meeting during consideration 
of the following two items of business, in accordance with the provisions of 
Section 100A (4) of the Local Government Act 1972, as amended.

Reason for Decision:
Should the press and public remain during debate on these two items there 
may be a disclosure of information that is deemed to be exempt under Parts 1 
and 4 of Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972.

REVIEW OF SCHOOL CROSSING PATROLS
21 The Cabinet considered a report of the Director of Neighbourhoods 
which advised Members of the resubmission of a proposal to either withdraw 
or charge for the School Crossing Patrol Service (SCP) after it had been 
withdrawn in 2016.  

Alternatives considered:
The alternative to the proposal would be to continue to fund all School 
Crossing Patrols across the Borough. Given the current budget pressures 
being experienced by the Council, Members were asked to consider a range 
of proposals in order to rationalise these services.

Decision:
1. That the Cabinet approves a review of the School Crossing Patrol 

Service, as detailed in the submitted report and its associated 
appendices, as a basis for consultation.

2. A further report on this matter, with appropriate recommendations be 
submitted to the Cabinet, in due course, which details the results of a 
consultation exercise in this regard.

Eligible for call-in: Yes

DEVELOPMENT OF KIRKHOLT HEALTH CENTRE
22 The Cabinet considered a report of the Director of Economy that 
sought approval to dispose of Council land at The Strand/Balderstone 
Road/Daventry Road, Kirkholt, Rochdale to the BRAHM LIFT Company for 
the development of a new health centre in line with the community-based 

Page 7



regeneration taking place in the area. The proposed disposal would support 
the wider regeneration of Kirkholt.

Alternatives considered:
The Council could choose not to be involved in this transaction, in which case 
it might not be possible for the CCG to under-write the development, which 
would put the health centre proposal at risk. As a result, this would put the 
achievement of the wider benefits at risk and the practice would continue to 
operate out of premises which are not fit for purpose, and would bring 
challenges at a future date, when considering alternative accommodation.

Decision:
1. That the disposal of the Council’s land, as detailed in the report, at nil 

value be approved.
2. That the terms of the lease structure, by which the Council will take and 

underlease of the site and, by way of a sub-underlease, grant 
occupancy of the premises to the local GP Practice, as set out in this 
report, be approved.

3. That the Cabinet delegates authority to the Chief Financial Officer to 
determine the decision on whether or not to opt the property for VAT.

Eligible for call-in: Yes.

Page 8



Report to Cabinet

Date of Meeting 24th July 2018
Portfolio Cabinet Member for 

Environment
Report Author Paul Wotton
Public/Private Document Public

Objections to Traffic Order - Blackpits Road & Edenfield Road, 
Rochdale

Executive Summary

1.1 This report is to inform Members of objections received to this proposed Order 
and seek a decision about the extent of the scheme to be implemented.

Recommendation

2.1

2.2

Having considered the objections, a decision is requested about the extent of 
this scheme to be implemented.

The scheme has been reviewed, and it is recommended that the objections be 
dismissed and the scheme implemented in full without modification as 
originally proposed.

Reason for Recommendation

3.1 A decision is sought in order to progress and implement this scheme.

Key Points for Consideration

4.1

4.2

4.3

This Traffic Regulation Order proposal has been prepared for Rochdale 
Township Action and Resources Delegated sub-Committee. At the public 
advertisement stage five objections were received which were reported to the 
Sub-Committee on 13 March 2018. During the preparation of this scheme 
some 4 supportive service requests have been received.

The Sub-Committee decided – “That consideration of the proposed Traffic 
Regulation Order: Borough of Rochdale ((Civil Enforcement of Traffic 
Contraventions) (Various Streets) (Rochdale Township) Order 2008) 
(Amendment) (No. 126) Order, which proposed to introduce parking 
restrictions on parts of Blackpits Road and Edenfield Road (A680) be referred 
to the Cabinet for determination.
Reason for decision – “The Sub-Committee has delegated authority to 
approve and implement the proposed Traffic Regulation Order: Borough of 

Page 9

Agenda Item 6



4.4

4.5

4.6

4.7

4.8

4.9

4.10

4.11

4.12

4.13

Rochdale ((Civil Enforcement of Traffic Contraventions) (Various Streets) 
(Rochdale Township) Order 2008) (Amendment) (No. 126) Order as 
advertised. If the Sub-Committee is unable to approve the proposed Order as 
advertised, then the Council’s Scheme of Delegation requires that the 
proposal must be referred to the Cabinet for determination”.

A plan illustrating the advertised proposals is contained in Appendix 1 at the 
end of this report.

The detailed Statement of Reasons for the scheme is to be found in Appendix 
2 of this report.

Appendix 3 contains the Notice of Intention that was publicly advertised to 
invite objections.

Appendix 4 of this report contains the Key Points for Consideration taken from 
the report to Rochdale Township Action and Resources Delegated Sub-
Committee on 13 March 2018.

Appendix 5 contains the Objections received and the Director of 
Neighbourhoods’ comments from the March 2018 Committee Report.

Appendix 6 contains comments which are supportive of the scheme taken 
from the March 2018 Committee Report.

Blackpits Road

Restrictions proposed on the approach to its junction with Edenfield Road are 
intended to improve inter-visibility and reduce instances of obstruction where 
traffic can be impeded by parked vehicles.

Edenfield Road

The bends situated immediately to the west of Hutchinson Road and 
Greenbooth Road continue to experience a growing proliferation of vehicles 
parked on the bends, impeding forward visibility and increasing the possibility 
of vehicles travelling in opposing directions crossing over the white centre line 
markings.

For the avoidance of doubt, on Edenfield Road situated immediately to the 
west of Rose Lane, a currently unrestricted marked out parking bay is not 
intended to be altered or have any restrictions introduced in it and is not 
believed to be used to its full capacity, thus demonstrating that there is some 
space available for parked vehicles displaced from the bends should the 
proposed Order be implemented.

Since the report to Township Action and Resources in March 2018, parking on 
the bend is seen to become more common, and the straight section of 
Edenfield Road opposite Hutchinson Road and the former bus terminus is 
being used by more parked vehicles which are further contributing to 
narrowing the main road over a greater distance than previously observed.

Page 10



4.14

4.15

4.16

4.17

4.18

4.19

4.20

4.21

Alternatives Considered

In the opinion of highways officers, both the restrictions proposed for parts of 
each of Blackpits Road and Edenfield Road are justified to the extent originally 
proposed in this TRO scheme.

In place of the proposed No Waiting At Any Time restriction on the bends, an 
alternative could be the use of double white lines placed along the centre line 
of Edenfield Road, which would have the same effect of preventing stopping 
and parking, whilst allowing loading/unloading and boarding/alighting from 
vehicles, however, the enforcement of such markings would be carried out by 
Greater Manchester Police and contraventions could incur a 3 points driving 
licence penalty in addition to a penalty charge, and thus more severe that the 
parking penalty for kerbside waiting restrictions enforced by the Council 
contained in the proposed Order under consideration.

A double white line system would be a more severe restriction with greater 
penalties than that currently proposed and furthermore when consulted 
Greater Manchester Police did not support such a system. 

Further comments on objections received

A significant proportion of the objections make reference to generalisations 
about the overall parking situation in Norden.

The scheme proposed is intended solely to solve issues affecting traffic on 
Edenfield Road, particularly on bends where forward visibility is limited, and 
junction protection at Blackpits Road.

Within the objections, statements about altering the existing parking 
arrangements at the former Norden Bus Terminus and generally in Norden are 
outside the scope of this report and proposed TRO.

There are some possibilities to alter such parking arrangements and a 
commissioning document is with Rochdale Township Action and Resources 
Delegated Sub-Committee who may consent to release some funds for this as 
a completely separate exercise from the Order under consideration which due 
to its importance to one of the borough’s strategic highways should remain so 
separated.

Highways officers remain of the opinion that the restrictions should be 
implemented in full as proposed, with increased justification due to the 
growing numbers of vehicles observed to park on Edenfield Road and that 
less than full implementation of the scheme will result in the subject having to 
be further examined in the near future.

Costs and Budget Summary

5.1

5.2

The proposed Traffic Regulation Order is a Rochdale Township Action and 
Resources Delegated Sub-Committee scheme.

Its estimated cost is £3500 to be met by Township Capital funding.

Page 11



Risk and Policy Implications

The Council has a statutory duty to ensure that its highways operate safely 
and efficiently for all traffic including pedestrians including the expeditious 
movement of traffic and that the only right the general public has on the 
highway is a right of passage along it.

Should Members support implementation of alternative restrictions to those 
proposed and advertised, then this would need advertising as a separate TRO 
including having its own objection period and would require extra funding.

6.1

6.2

Consultation

7.1

7.2

7.3

7.4

Consultation required by the Local Authorities’ Traffic Orders, (Procedure) 
(England and Wales) Regulations 1996 has taken place.

The Emergency Services, Transport for Greater Manchester, The Freight 
Transport Association and The Road Haulage Association were consulted on
9th January 2017.

Notices of Intention were posted on site and advertised in the local 
newspaper on 11th January 2017.

The objection period ran until 8th February 2017.

Background Papers Place of Inspection

None

For Further Information Contact: Paul Wotton, , 
paul.wotton@rochdale.gov.uk

Page 12



APPENDIX 1 – Scheme plan as advertised

Page 13



APPENDIX 2 – Statement of Reasons
Taken from report considered by Rochdale Township Action and Resources 
Delegated Sub-Committee - 13 March 2018

3.1
3.1.1

3.1.2

3.1.3

3.1.4

3.1.5

3.1.6

3.1.7

3.1.8

3.1.9

3.1.10

3.1.11

3.1.12

Copy of Statement of Reasons
Consideration has been given to extending the No Waiting At Any Time 
restrictions on Blackpits Road at the junction of Edenfield Road, Norden Ward. 

Parked vehicles can cause obstruction and reduce sight lines for vehicles 
turning into and out of Blackpits Road. In addition to this, parked vehicles are 
obstructing dropped kerbs preventing access to the garages of nearby 
properties and access by emergency vehicles.

Blackpits Road is a non-strategic highway and residential cul de sac.

There is currently 15 metres of No Waiting At Any Time restriction on both 
sides of Blackpits Road from its junction with Edenfield Road providing 
junction protection; it is those that require extending to a distance of 40 metres 
to ease traffic movement, residential access, improve forward visibility and 
create a more efficient and safer highway.

The proposals also include an extension of No Waiting At Any Time 
restrictions further to the west along Edenfield Road near to and beyond 
Hutchinson Road.

An increasing number of vehicles have been observed to park where 
Edenfield Road bends and climbs away from Rochdale.

These vehicles create a hazard to other users of the highway prejudicing the 
safe movement of traffic where the narrow road has limited forward visibility 
due to the bend west of Greenbooth Road.

Parked vehicles on the southerly side of the bend force westbound motorists 
to straddle the centre of the carriageway and enter the opposite side of the 
carriageway into the path of oncoming vehicles.

Edenfield Road (A680) is strategic highway and a bus route and No Waiting At 
Any Time restrictions are intended to eliminate indiscriminate parking and 
allow vehicles to remain on the correct side of the carriageway, thus creating a 
more efficient and safer highway.

Existing marked unrestricted parking bays on the south side of Edenfield Road 
beyond the bend are not affected by the proposed restrictions. 

There have been no recorded injury accidents in the last 3 years on Blackpits 
Road and Edenfield Road.

Further to that stated in 3.1.11 immediately above a slight injury accident 
was recorded in December 2016 which took place after these proposals 
had been devised and prior to their advertisement.

Page 14



APPENDIX 3 – Notice of Intention

TRO Ref No H60/1182
BOROUGH OF ROCHDALE

((CIVIL ENFORCEMENT OF TRAFFIC CONTRAVENTIONS)
(VARIOUS STREETS) (ROCHDALE TOWNSHIP) ORDER 2008)

(AMENDMENT) (NO. 126) ORDER

Blackpits Road and Edenfield Road, Rochdale

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the Rochdale Borough Council, in exercise of its powers 
under Sections 1(1), 2 and 4 of the Road Traffic Regulation Act 1984, intend to make an 
Order, the effect of which would be to:-

(i) Amend the Borough of Rochdale (Civil Enforcement of Traffic Contraventions)
(Various Streets) (Rochdale Township) Order 2008 by inserting the following:-

Schedule No 1.1
No Waiting At Any Time

Blackpits Road, Norden Ward

(ni) both sides from its junction with Edenfield Road for a distance of 40 metres in a south 
westerly direction

Edenfield Road, Norden Ward

(niii) the southerly side from its junction with Shepherd Street to a point 90 metres west of 
its junction with Hutchinson Road

(niv) the northerly side from its junction with Heap Road to a point 117 metres west of its 
junction with Greenbooth Road

Schedule No 5.3
No Loading 8.00 - 9.00am And 4.30 - 6.00pm

Edenfield Road, Norden Ward

(ni) the northerly side from its junction with Greenbooth Road to its junction with Heap 
Road

(ii) Revoke those parts of the Borough of Rochdale (Civil Enforcement of Traffic 
Contraventions) (Various Streets) (Rochdale Township) Order 2008, as follows:-

Schedule No. 1.1
No Waiting At Any Time

Edenfield Road, Norden Ward 

(i) the north side from a point 43 metres east of its junction with Greenbooth Road to its 
junction with Heap Road

(x) the south side from a point 50 metres east of its junction with Hutchinson Road to its 
junction with Blackpits Road

Page 15



(xi) the south side from its junction with Blackpits Road to a point 17 metres east of its 
junction with Blackpits Road

(xii) the south side from a point 17 metres east of its junction with Blackpits Road to its 
junction with Shepherd Street

(ni) the south side from its junction with Hutchinson Road for a distance of 50 metres in 
an easterly direction

Schedule No 5.3
No Loading 8.00 - 9.00am And 4.30 - 6.00pm

Edenfield Road, Norden Ward

(vii) the north side from a point 43 metres east of its junction with Greenbooth Road to its 
junction with Heap Road

A copy of the proposed Order and a map showing the lengths of roads concerned, together 
with the Council’s Statement of Reasons for making the Order, may be inspected at the 
Customer Services Centre, Ground Floor, Number One Riverside, Smith Street, Rochdale, 
OL16 1XU during normal office hours.

Objections to the proposed Order, stating the grounds on which they are made, must be 
made in writing and forwarded to trafficorders@rochdale.gov.uk or, alternatively, to Network 
Management, Floor 2, Number One Riverside, Smith Street, Rochdale, OL16 1XU  to reach 
the Council on or before 8th February 2017, quoting H60/1182.

Dated this 11th day of January 2017

David Wilcock
Assistant Director – Legal, Governance & Workforce

Rochdale Borough Council

Number One Riverside
Smith Street
ROCHDALE
OL16 1XU

Page 16

mailto:trafficorders@rochdale.gov.uk


APPENDIX 4 – Key Points for Consideration

Taken from report considered by Rochdale Township Action and Resources 
Delegated Sub-Committee - 13 March 2018

Key Points for Consideration

4.1

4.2

4.3

4.4

4.5

4.6

4.7

4.8

4.12

4.13

4.14

During the consultation period the Authority received five objections.

To comply with the Local authorities’ Traffic Orders (Procedure) (England and 
Wales) Regulations 1996 the Authority must consider all objections received 
during the consultation period of 21 days before ‘Making’ a Traffic Regulation 
Order.

It should be noted that in considering the report because it involves part of 
Edenfield Road (A680), the proposed Order is deemed strategic in nature and 
should be dealt with in accordance with Section 8.2.3 of the Scheme of 
Delegation to Township Committee.

Committee has the delegated power to confirm and give instruction to 
implement the Order as advertised or refer the matter to Cabinet for 
determination should the Committee not feel fully able to support the proposal.

In considering the objections the Committee should be mindful that the only 
right the general public has on the highway is a right of passage along it.

The Council in its role as Highway Authority, has a duty of care to ensure the 
safety of the travelling public and a duty under the Traffic Management Act 
2004 to maintain the expeditious movement of traffic.

The Objectors’ comments and the Director of Neighbourhoods response are 
attached at Appendix B [now Appendix 5] of this report. Their names and 
precise addresses, if known, have been redacted.

In addition to the formal objections received a total of four supportive 
messages have been received and are attached at Appendix C [now 
Appendix 6] of this report. Their names and precise addresses, if known, 
have been redacted.

General comments about the objections

The accident which took place at the junction of Rose Avenue and Edenfield 
Road involved a vehicle emerging from Rose Avenue making a right turn onto 
Edenfield Road.

In this location the proposals do include No Waiting At Any Time restrictions to 
the right of Rose Avenue where there are currently white hatch markings 
indicating that drivers should not park there.

If introduced, these restrictions would assist the emerging drivers’ view to the 
right on the inside of a bend.

Page 17



4.15

4.16

4.17

4.18

4.19

4.20

4.21

4.22

4.23

4.24

The carriageway width of Edenfield Road is not sufficient to allow parking and 
maintain two way traffic flow where forward visibility is limited by the bend and 
gradient.

The restrictions proposed on Edenfield Road outside the Bridge Inn public 
house are intended to remove parked vehicles which obstruct visibility of 
vehicles emerging from Hutchinson Road, and hinder forward visibility heading 
towards the bend and cause larger vehicles to stray across the centre line 
potentially into the path of oncoming traffic.
 
Due to vehicles parking on and narrowing Blackpits Road close to its junction 
with Edenfield Road this causes difficulty when an emerging vehicle meets a 
vehicle trying to enter the street.

A small increase in parking space at the former bus terminus is included in this 
proposal by removing a redundant bus stand marking.

The parking capacity at the former bus terminus is not capable of extension 
due to the need to allow vehicles to urn safely into and out of the established 
parking bays.

The scheme proposals are supported by Greater Manchester Police.

Some of the objectors refer to the possibility of extending this TRO scheme or 
introducing other measures in preference to this scheme.

The proposal under consideration has been advertised, objections received, 
and needs to be considered on its own merits.

It is not possible to add other areas of Norden to this proposal at this stage.

Should Committee wish to support other TRO measures then this is something 
that could be commissioned separately.

Page 18



APPENDIX 5 – Objections Received

Objector 1                 .    Chair, Norden Area Forum

Details of objection
Objector’s comments written as 

received

Response of the Director of 
Neighbourhoods

Subject: Re; Objection to Rochdale TRO 
H60/1182.

I wish to register my objection to this TRO 
for a number of reasons;

1. Lack Of Proper Consultation ; The 
situation regarding traffic dangers 
in Norden has been raised at a 
number of recent Area Forum 
Meeting . The specific issues of 
traffic hazards and parking at the 
Bus Terminus  and other serious 
traffic matters were brought to the 
attention of the Meeting  by a 
number of concerned residents. 
Business owners and local 
residents were concerned , 
amongst other issues about the 
absence of waiting time restriction 
on the parking bays at the Jubilee 
Park and the absence of a box 
junction on Hutchinson Road at 
the exit to the Bus Terminus (a 
very obvious and persistent 
hazard) Mindful of these concerns 
, the Township Office has 
requested on more than one 
occasion that Highways Officers 
come to the Area Forum or meet 
with concerned residents on 
individual matters; each time , they 
have steadfastly refused these 
reasonable requests. As a result , 
instead of using this and other 
TRO`s to address the serious 
concerns of Villagers , Highways 
Officers are using this TRO to 
address their own agendas . 
Villagers have demonstrated , in 
the past , a capacity to have 
sensible discussions with 
Highways Officers even on 

This scheme is a Rochdale Township 
Action and Resources Delegated sub-
Committee scheme and has been 
promoted as required by the statutory 
process described in paragraph 4.2 of 
this report.

Should the Committee feel further 
work merits support in the area then it 
can commission another Traffic 
Regulation Order separately from the 
proposed Order now under 
consideration. It is not possible to 
amend the current Order to regulate 
the use of the parking bays provided 
adjacent to Jubilee Park.

This Traffic Regulation Order was 
approved and commissioned by 
Rochdale Township Action and 
Resources Delegated sub-Committee. 
Initially the commission was for 
restrictions on Blackpits Road but 
following a second request for waiting 
restrictions on Edenfield Road the two 
schemes were amalgamated to 
reduce costs. The scheme was 
developed and Ward Councillors were 
notified of the proposals and asked to 
comment. The proposals were also 
discussed at Norden Area Forum prior 
to the statutory legal process 
commencing. 

Page 19



controversial local matters (eg the 
20mph around Whitaker Moss 
School) . In addition, I am very 
concerned that ,for a number of 
days following the publication of 
the TRO Notices in the affected 
area, the TRO was not available 
on the Rochdale Council website 
,depriving residents and others of 
the opportunity to comment on the 
matter.

2. Loss Of Parking For Villagers and 
Visitors Alike ; The imposition of 
this TRO involves the loss of a 
number of parking spaces ,within 
walking distance of shops, 
businesses and other local 
amenities. This in a Village 
desperately short of parking 
spaces .

3. Justification; It is not unreasonable 
to expect that Officers expending 
scarce resources should do so on 
the basis of objectively verifiable 
evidence for their proposals. In the 
case of this TRO , the Officers 
admit that there have not been any 
accidents on this part of Edenfield 
Road and Black Pitts Road during 
the last 3 years. There is no traffic 
survey evidence in to support their 
conclusions , nor is there any 
photographic evidence to support 
the contention that vehicles cross 
the centre of the road frequently. Is 
it merely a" happy" coincidence 
that the imposition of the proposed 
TRO would remove a major 
impediment to any proposed 
development at Greenbooth?; if 
so,such matters surely require 
proper discussion prior to 
implementation.

4. An Opportunity Lost; Every TRO 
costs Rochdale Council £3,500 of 
increasingly scarce resources . 
Measures could be incorporated in 
this TRO to address more pressing 
concerns expressed by Villagers ; 
as well as those mentioned above, 
measures could be incorporated 
,for instance, to address 

Publication of proposals on the 
Council’s website is not a statutory 
requirement. The scheme has been 
promoted as required by the statutory 
process described in paragraph 4.2 of 
this report.

Nobody has the right to park on the 
highway, the only right a person has is 
to travel along it. Although parking on 
the highway is an accepted practise 
vehicles should be parked in a safe 
and courteous manner that does not 
hinder peoples use of the highway. 
The purpose of the scheme under 
consideration is to address safety 
concerns at junctions and on bends 
which pose a hazard to motorists.

An injury accident has taken place 
after the scheme was devised and a 
short time before it was advertised.
Paragraphs 3.1.12 and 4.12-4.15 
refer.

There is photographic evidence to 
demonstrate that vehicles do cross 
the centre line marking, in addition to 
some of the scheme supporters in 
Appendix C who mention this issue 
too. The photos also show that 
vehicles also park in a manner that 
obstructs the footway

The Greenbooth development has no 
relevance to the TRO under 
consideration.

Having advertised this proposal it is 
not possible to alter its scope to 
include other topics. Any further 
TRO’s would need separately 
investigating and if thought fit could be 
commissioned by the Committee.

Page 20



dangerous parking on Ashborne 
Street ( which already give rise to 
life-threatening situations) and 
obstructive and dangerous parking 
on Hutchinson Rd. Because 
Highways Officers refuse to attend 
the Forum or meet with concerned 
residents groups , they are not 
aware of local concerns or 
priorities ;_ at the same time they 
seem content to expend scarce 
resources on measure which do 
not address local safety concerns. 
This causes further additional 
costs,delays and frustrations .

5. Lack Of Enforcement Resources; 
For a TRO to be effective in 
addressing problems ,there needs 
to be adequate resources 
available to insure that 
Regulations can be enforced. 
There is already  considerable 
evidence that there are not 
sufficient Parking Enforcement 
Officers to adequately enforce 
existing yellow line in Norden 
without adding more . Villagers 
frequently express their frustration 
at lack of enforcement at both 
Area Forums and PACT Meetings

For the reasons explained above , I 
object to this TRO both as an individual 
and as a representative of a number of 
Forum participants  who have repeatedly 
raised concerns. The level of concern 
about this TRO is such that it seem 
sensible  for the matter to be referred to a 
Township Committee Meeting for further 
discussion and scrutiny.

Kind Regards                 .
Chair 
Norden Area Forum

The restrictions proposed are ‘No 
Waiting At Any Time’ to be indicated 
by double yellow lines, and if 
approved and implemented stand the 
best chance of successful compliance 
without undue use of enforcement 
resources because they are a simple 
restriction that is generally well 
understood by drivers.

Having received objections to the 
TRO proposal, the formal process to 
consider them is by Rochdale 
Township Action and Resources 
Delegated sub-Committee which is 
the entire reason for this report. 

 

Page 21



Objector 2                 .      .       .   

Details of objection
Objector’s comments written as 

received

Response of the Director of 
Neighbourhoods

Reference; Rochdale MBC TRO 
H60/1182.

I am highly concerned as to the loss of 
opportunity and continuing enjoyment this 
order intends to quash.

Norden is a small, vibrant and compact 
community, which to maintain its fluidity 
of services and incoming resources, 
needs its space and parking to ensure its 
continued growth and valuable track 
record of safety remain constant.

Kind Regards 
                .
                .

The generalisations contained in this 
objection are not sufficiently detailed 
to comment upon.

The proposed locations of the waiting 
restrictions are to remove vehicles 
which are parked in a dangerous and 
unsafe manner which pose a risk to 
users of the highway.
In the vicinity of the proposed scheme 
formal parking bays are provided on 
the former Bus Turning Circle and also 
on parts of Edenfield Road where 
there is sufficient width and it is safe to 
do so.

Page 22



Objector 3                 .      .       .   

Details of objection
Objector’s comments written as 

received

Response of the Director of 
Neighbourhoods

Subject:  H60/1182 

I write with regard to the proposed TRO 
on Edenfield Road.

The proposals put forward are going to 
have a devastating effect to the residents 
of Hutchinson Road - who are already 
having problems with access for 
emergency and agricultural vehicles, due 
to people parking on both sides of the 
road over the brow of the hill towards the 
original playing fields.

Rather than putting MORE lines down, 
surely now there are no busses using the 
old terminus, there is no requirement for 
the double yellow lines against the 
building inside the terminus (where the 
old toilets entrance used to be). It is clear 
from the number of badge holders which 
park on the double yellow lines in any 
case, that there is ample access to the 
parking spaces at the perimeter, so 
clearly these lines need removing.

There is no need to have the lines 
outside the Bridge Inn pub, I have never 
had an issue with visibility with vehicles 
parked there, and your own evidence 
states there has been no injurous 
accidents reported. Surely only on the 
very corner itself need there be any 
restictions placed? Likewise I have never 
seen any issue with vehicles parked on 
the North side of Edenfield Road 
between Greenbooth Road and the old 
Terminus. If anything, it is a benefit to the 
Village for people coming down the hill to 
have to slow on approach to the village. 

Some worn yellow lines on 
Hutchinson Road are due to be 
remarked. 

The bus stand road marking outside 
the Chip Shop is intended to be 
removed as part of this scheme and 
will provide a modest increase in 
available kerb space.
Any alteration to other restrictions 
cannot be included within the 
advertised TRO presently under 
consideration.
Should the Committee feel this is 
worth investigating it would need 
separately commissioning.

The restrictions proposed on 
Edenfield Road outside the Bridge 
Inn pub are intended to improve 
visibility at the junction with 
Hutchinson Road and improve 
forward visibility in the direct of the 
gradient and bends and for traffic 
travelling towards Rochdale. They 
will also benefit vehicles emerging 
from Rose Avenue onto Edenfield 
Road.

Page 23



This would also provide a lead up to 
busses stopped in the bus stops, rather 
than the speeding vehicles coming down 
the hill suddenly being brought to a stop 
as they currently do. 

The council need to provide MORE 
spaces to park, rather than pushing 
people to park on the side roads, which 
are already busting at the seams.

I would agree the need for lines on the 
outside of the bend between Greenbooth 
Road and Slaunt Bank due to the sharp 
bend and width of the road. However I 
have never had issue with vehicles 
parked further up the hill.

Blackpits Road is too narrow for parking 
on both sides in any case, so I am 
surprised the wallside of the road does 
not have lines already.

I have previously asked for a box junction 
to stop vehicles blocking the entrance to 
Hutchinson Road  from Edenfield Road 
by vehicles exiting the old terminus. 
Surely as this is a major risk to health this 
should take priority over someones urge 
to fill the area with double yellow lines.

Yours sincerely 

                 . 

     .

     .              

The scheme seeks to address 
junction visibility and forward 
visibility issues on Edenfield Road. 

The scheme does not seek to 
remove parked vehicles from 
established marked unlimited 
parking bays beyond Rose Avenue.

The scheme seeks to address 
obstruction issues on Blackpits Road 
close to the junction with Edenfield 
Road.

A box junction is not appropriate for 
the modest numbers of vehicles 
using the former bus terminus. 

Page 24



Objector 4                 .      .      .   

Details of objection
Objector’s comments written as 

received

Response of the Director of 
Neighbourhoods

Subject: TRO H60/1182

I am writing to object to the above 
proposal relating to parking restrictions 
on Edenfield and Blackpits Roads. The 
village has grown considerably over the 
last 10-20 years and is already struggling 
for parking spaces. We have a number of 
excellent local shops who rely on the 
trade from the local community- by taking 
away even more parking spaces they run 
the risk of losing trade as well. The road 
changes made in order to accommodate 
the new development at Greenbooth are 
already causing issues and concerns as 
when approached from the Owd Betts 
direction cars are forced over towards the 
incoming traffic which is an accident 
waiting to happen. 
Restricting the parking down towards the 
village and recreational area of Jubilee 
Park will also cause issues for young 
families who come to enjoy the park area. 
Norden as a village has worked 
extremely hard over the last few years to 
develop and strengthen its community - 
please don't damage to potential 
sustainability or spoil the progress made 
by so many hard working individuals and 
business owners by making it 
increasingly difficult for people to come 
and visit and enjoy what we have to offer. 

Yours sincerely 
                .
      .
      .   

The scheme seeks to address 
obstruction issues on Blackpits Road 
close to the junction with Edenfield 
Road.

The junction of Over Town Lane and 
Edenfield Road has been altered to 
improve visibility for emerging traffic 
and a repositioning of the centre line.

This scheme seeks to address 
junction visibility and forward 
visibility issues on Edenfield Road.

Page 25



Objector 5       .       .      . Edenfield Road Rochdale OL11      .   

Details of objection
Objector’s comments written as 

received
Response of the Director of 

Neighbourhoods
Subject: Objection

Borough of Rochdale  ((Civil Enforcement 
of Traffic Contraventions) (Various 
Streets) (Rochdale Township) Order 2008) 
(Amendment) (No. 126) Order 
Blackpits Road and Edenfield Road, 
Rochdale 
 
I would like to raise an objection to the 
above traffic order.
 
I am the property owner and resident at 
. . Edenfield Rd.  which is situated on the 
corner of Blackpits Road
 
The 'no waiting at any time' restriction 
would cause an inconvenience as I would 
have to walk a significant distance from 
my property to a legitimate parking 
place.  
 
A similar problem would be created for 
my neighbours at     .     . and     .  
Edenfield Road.  
 
My elderly mother visits (who is a Blue 
Badge Holder) and I have young 
grandchildren whom I care for who are 
transported to my home by car.  
 
In the event of being incapacitated or 
having reduced mobility  the restriction 
would not allow for grocery deliveries etc. 
directly to my property.
 
The restriction is likely to affect the 
'saleability' of my property and the value 
of the property.
 
I have lived at this property since 1999 at 
which time there were no parking 
restrictions in front of the property or on 
Blackpits Road.
 
At the time of the  Red Row Housing 
development concerns were raised about 

The Council in its role as Highway 
Authority has no duty to provide 
parking spaces for individual 
residents. The only right the general 
public has is a right of passage 
along a highway.

The proposed ‘No Waiting At Any 
time’ restrictions would not prevent 

 the holders of blue disabled 
persons badges from parking 
for up to 3 hours

 a vehicle being stopped to 
allow passengers to board or 
alight

 goods being loaded or 
unloaded from a vehicle

The value of a property cannot include 
a sum for items that the seller has no 
control over such as parking on the 
Public Highway. On-street parking is 
not considered when a property is  
valued.

There can never be a guarantee that a 
road without restrictions on it will 
remain so.

Page 26



the width of Blackpits road and the 
visibility at the junction of Blackpits Road 
and Edenfield Rd. The plans were 
passed without widening of the road.  
Parking restrictions were enforced as 
currently stand. 
 
The statement of reasons include :
Parked vehicles can cause obstruction 
and reduce sight lines for vehicles 
turning into and out of Blackpits Road. 
In addition to this, parked vehicles are 
obstructing dropped kerbs preventing 
access to the garages of nearby 
properties and access by emergency 
vehicles. 
 
The only garage in the vicinity is owned 
by property owner and resident at . .  
Edenfield Rd who has given permission 
to us as neighbours to park in front of his 
garage.  I have never witnessed a 
situation whereby emergency vehicles 
would not be able to access Blackpits Rd 
due to parking. 
 
As included in the statement there has 
been no reported incidents / injuries 
reported in the past three years at the 
junction of Black Pits Road / Edenfield 
Rd. 
 
A more satisfactory solution would be to 
issue resident permits to the residents at 
at     .     .    .  and    . Edenfield Road.  
 
In an attempt to improve the parking 
availability and reduce congestion I 
recently applied for planning permission 
to erect a 'balcony' from the first floor of 
my property which was refused by 
RMBC.  Had it been passed I was 
planning to apply to drop the kerb and 
use the 'balcony' as a carport so that I 
could utilise the rear of the property for 
parking. 
 
Regards,       .       .   
    . Edenfield Road, Rochdale OL11    . 

Some supporters of this scheme 
specifically mention that vehicles 
parked close to the junction of 
Blackpits Road and Edenfield Road do 
cause a problem. There are also 
informal notices placed on gates 
advising drivers not to block accesses.

Any parking permits specifically for 
residents’ own use would still cause 
vehicles to park in an undesirable 
location.
The Council’s criteria for ‘resident 
only’ parking schemes are intended 
for use on an area-wide basis of at 
least 50 properties with a 
measureable parking problem.
A residents’ parking permit would not 
allow the holder to park on No Waiting 
At Any Time restrictions indicated by 
double yellow lines.

Page 27



APPENDIX 6 – Supportive Comments Received

Supporter 1      .         . 

Supporter’s comments written as received

Subject: Re: Parking restrictions Edenfield Road

If accepted these proposals will make the road much more safe.
I am concerned about the potential for a serious accident on the bend by the 
Bridge Inn. This is a blind bend but cars are now parking outside the pub and up 
the hill towards the bend and on the other side coming down the hill (partially 
blocking the pavement). Additionally cars park on the chevrons just on the bend. 
This all pushes cars in both directions towards the centre of the road on the bend. 
They cannot see one another until the last minute. Speeding does not help.
There are double yellow lines from Shepherd Street to Hutchison Road but 
bizarrely not beyond!
The extension of the lines up the hill on both sides and around the bend would 
improve safety. Either that or a double white line up the centre of the road 
(although judging by the parking near St Michaels school in Bamford this will not 
stop the parking that narrows the road).          .         .

Supporter 2      .         . Blackpits Road

Supporter’s comments written as received

Subject: H60/1182 Blackpits Road Restrictions

Please may I add my approval to this traffic proposal from my personal experience 
as a resident on Blackpits Road.

No matter what time of day or night, cars are parked right up to the junction of 
Edenfield Road, it is particularly hard to see any oncoming traffic coming from 
around the junction (either way) due to the nuisance and dangerously parked cars.

I have seen a few bumps on that junction over the course of the last 8 years and 
believe double yellow lines down to St Pauls Church Hall would help to alleviate 
this problem.

Yours sincerely,    .         .         .

Page 28



Supporter 3         .       . Blackpits Road

Supporter’s comments written as received

Subject: H60/1182 Blackpits Road Restrictions

Just for the record, may I add my approval to this traffic proposal from my personal 
experience as a resident on Blackpits Road.

No matter what time of day or night, with cars parked right up to the junction of 
Edenfield Road, it is particularly hard to see any oncoming traffic coming from 
around the junction (either way) due to the nuisance and dangerously parked cars.

I have seen a few bumps on that junction over the course of the last 8 years and 
believe double yellow lines down to St Pauls Church Hall would help to alleviate 
this problem.

Yours sincerely,    .            .        . 

Supporter 4 .                   .

Supporter’s comments written as received

Parking Restrictions Edenfield Road

I am writing regarding your recent notice displayed in the Rochdale Observer 
relating to the proposed parking restrictions on Edenfield Road and Blackpits 
Road. 

I would like to add my support to the proposals. Often when turning into Blackpits 
Road from Edenfield Road I have to stop and allow the vehicles exiting Blackpits 
Road to pull out before I can turn into the street. This is due to parked vehicles. 
The restrictions would prevent vehicles from parking there making it easier and 
safer to access Blackpits Road and the Church Hall.

In recent months I have noticed an increase in cars being parked on Edenfield 
Road outside the Bridge Inn forcing vehicles heading up the hill to cross the centre 
line on a blind bend  into oncoming traffic which is very dangerous especially as 
vehicles heading down the hill naturally cut the corner. I believe there was an 
accident on this bend before Christmas possibly caused by this very issue. Until 
this dangerous parking has been removed it is highly likely there will be further 
accidents in the future. 

I think the proposals will help to move the dangerously parked cars in the area 
making it safer to drive

Yours sincerely          .                   .

Page 29



Report to Cabinet

Date of Meeting 24 July 2018

Portfolio
Councillor Daalat Ali
Portfolio Holder for Planning, 
Development & Housing

Report Author Paul Moore

Public/Private Document Public

Draft Allocations Development Plan Document - Consultation

Executive Summary

1.1

1.2

The Council adopted its Core Strategy in October 2016, which sets out the 
long-term spatial strategy for the future development of the Rochdale 
Borough. The next stage of the process is to prepare out Allocations 
Development Plan Document (DPD) that will support the Core Strategy and 
together will replace our adopted Unitary Development Plan (UDP) 2004.

The Allocations DPD proposes detailed planning policies, area designations 
and site allocations for specific types of development to meet the borough’s 
need for new homes and jobs through to 2028. It provides the details needed 
to deliver the spatial vision, strategic objectives and scale of growth outlined in 
the Core Strategy. 
.  

Recommendations

2.1

2.2

That the proposed draft Allocations Development Plan Document (and 
accompanying evidence base) be approved as the basis for public 
consultation; 

That the Head of Planning be authorised to make any final editorial changes to 
the document in consultation with the Portfolio Holder for Planning and 
Housing.
.

Reason for Recommendation

3.1 Following adoption of the Core Strategy there is a requirement upon the 
Council to set out through a Site Allocations DPD how the Council will deliver 
land to meet the agreed scale of economic growth.  Public consultation is an 
important part of that process both legally and in terms of meeting the 
requirements of our adopted Statement of Community Involvement.

.  

Page 30

Agenda Item 8



Key Points for Consideration

4.1

4.2

4.3

4.4

4.5

Background to the Allocations DPD

The Council adopted its Core Strategy in October 2016, which sets out the 
long-term spatial strategy for the future development of the Rochdale 
Borough. The Allocations Development Plan Document (DPD) will support the 
Core Strategy and together will replace the Unitary Development Plan (UDP).

The Allocations DPD proposes detailed planning policies, area designations 
and site allocations for specific types of development to meet the borough’s 
needs for new homes and jobs through to 2028. It provides the details needed 
to deliver the spatial vision, strategic objectives and scale of growth outlined in 
the Core Strategy.

Content of the Allocations DPD

The Allocations DPD will show:
 Sites for new housing development to deliver at least 460 additional 

homes per year up to 2028 (accounting for any demolitions);
 Sites to deliver around 210 hectares of employment development up to 

2028;
 The extent of designated employment areas;
 Proposals for new transport infrastructure;
 Town, District and Local Centres boundaries and primary shopping 

frontages;
 The Green Infrastructure Network and associated designations, 

including open spaces, playing pitches and protected open land;
 Areas of safeguarded land for flood risk management. 

Details of the sites and the policies relating to them are included in the Draft 
Allocations DPD which has been placed in the members area.

Consultation to date

A Regulation 18 consultation (under of The Town and Country Planning (Local 
Planning) (England) Regulations 2012) and call for sites took place between 
July and August 2017. The purpose of this consultation was to seek views on 
the subject and scope of the Allocations DPD to inform production of the draft 
Allocations DPD. The Council also undertook a call for sites exercise which 
provided a further opportunity for land owners and developers to submit 
brownfield sites.

A total of 63 representations were received during the consultation, of which 
51 related to submission of sites as part of the call for sites exercise. 
Comments were received from a wide range of bodies and organisations as 
well as individual members of the public. All comments, along with the 
Council’s response, are set out in the subsequent Statement of Consultation.  

Page 31



4.6 Next Steps

All representations received during this proposed consultation exercise will 
then be carefully considered and would inform the penultimate and next stage 
of the process to produce a  known publication Allocations DPD. This is the 
version of the plan that the Council intends to submit for examination. At this 
stage a further public consultation exercise would be undertaken which seeks 
formal representations on the publication Allocations DPD. The publication 
Allocations DPD would then be submitted, along with any representations 
received, to the Planning Inspectorate for an independent Examination in 
Public.

Alternatives considered

The Allocations DPD is the next stage of the Council’s Local Plan which is a 
statutory requirement placed on all local authorities.  To not produce an 
Allocations DPD would mean that the Local Plan was out of date.  Having an 
up to date Local Plan is important to guide development within the borough 
and provides a basis for planning decisions.

Costs and Budget Summary

5.1. The printing and consultation costs will be funded from the Strategic Planning 
budget relating to Local Plan preparation. 

There are no specific financial implications arising from the recommendations 
within this report for the consultation on the Draft Allocations DPD. 

Risk and Policy Implications

All the issues raised and the recommendation(s) in this report involve risk 
considerations as set out below:
 Delay in consulting on draft Allocations DPD would in turn result in a 

delay of the overall adoption of the DPD as part of Rochdale’s Local Plan. 
The Allocations DPD has to be adopted within a specific timeframe and 
failure to meet this timescale may result in there being no up-to-date 
policy framework for the borough. 

 Failure to follow proper consultation procedures, including Duty to 
Cooperate, set out in the Council’s adopted Statement of Community 
Involvement could lead to a possibility that that the DPD would be found 
unsound and/or could result in a legal challenge on procedure. 

6.1

Consultation

7.1 Subject to members approving the draft DPD, officers will publicise and 
undertaken a consult exercise on the draft Allocations DPD and supporting 
documents for a minimum of six weeks. During this time the draft Allocations 
DPD and supporting documents will be published on the Council’s website, 
and paper copies of the documents will be available in Rochdale Library, 
Castleton and Middleton Library.  Stakeholders and members of the public 
on the Council’s planning policy database will be notified by letter or email. 

Page 32



Background Papers Place of Inspection

8.1 Draft Allocations DPD
Integrated Assessment 
Statement of Consultation

Planning and Development Service, 
Number One Riverside

For Further Information Contact: Abigail Mills

Page 33



Report to Cabinet

Date of Meeting 24th July 2018
Portfolio Children’s Services
Report Author Michael Kemp
Public/Private Document Public 

Capital Investment In Schools 2018/19

Executive Summary

1. The report seeks approval for proposed expenditure in accordance with the Council’s 
Financial Regulations.  These regulations require Cabinet approval to be obtained 
before new expenditure can be incurred.  This report requests approval for capital 
spend. 

Recommendation

2. Members are asked to consider the report and to:

Approve the capital spend funded by a specific Department of Education Grant to 
enable the development and growth of Autistic Spectrum Condition (ASC) schools’ 
provision within Rochdale Borough.  This is in order to meet the growing demand for 
ASC school placements, to reduce the need to seek costly external school 
placements and to reduce the number of ASC pupils educated at home. 

Reason for Recommendation

3. In 2016 Rochdale underwent a Joint Special Educational Needs and/or Disabilities 
(SEND) Inspection.  The inspection identified four specific areas for improvement. 
These were the need: 
 
 to increase the capacity of mainstream schools to identity and effectively meet 

the needs of the increasing population of children and young people with SEND, 
in particular those with ASC;

 to improve the weak educational outcomes for children and young people at the 
SEN support stage and reduce the increasingly high number of exclusions for 
this group; 

 to improve the timeliness of responses to children, young people and their 
families in need of significant help and support, with particular reference to 
children and young people with ASC; 

 to promote a common understanding of Rochdale’s SEND Local Offer.
 

In addition, areas have been identified to ensure that the best outcomes for children 
and young people with SEND are achieved and to fully meet legislative requirements.  

Page 34

Agenda Item 9



Key Points for Consideration 

In line with the national trend, in Rochdale Borough we have seen a consistent 
increase in the number of children with a formal diagnosis with ASC over the last 
three years and that trend is anticipated to continue to rise. For example the data for 
children/young people with ASC who have an Education Health Care Plan (EHCP) 
shows that in the last year there has been an increase from Quarter 1 at 445 to 501 
at Quarter 4. This equates to 32% of all children with an EHCP. 

If we include the children at SEN Support with ASC then the number of pupils with 
ASC increases to 926.

Due to the lack of provision within Rochdale Borough schools we have an increased 
number of children being placed out of area. Currently there are 49 in high cost 
placements, which is not financially viable long term, when the current predicted 
spend for this academic year is £1,621,038. With the current increase in the numbers 
being diagnosed we anticipate, unless proactive action is taken, the number of 
children needing out of area placements will increase.   

Alongside this we have identified, within the inspection, a high number of children 
with ASC accessing home education with the reason being that parents do not feel 
that mainstream provision can meet their child’s needs and that number is rising.

Current Position - SPECIAL EDUCATIONAL PROVISION CAPITAL FUND PLAN

In 2017 to support Local Authorities (LA) to be able to ensure they have sufficient 
school places for all pupils, including those with SEN and disabilities (SEND); the 
Government committed £215 million of capital funding for the financial years 2018-19 
to 2020-21.   This funding is to help LAs create new school places and improve 
existing facilities for children and young people with SEND, in consultation with 
parents and providers.

This capital grant is available to LAs so they can improve special educational 
provision for children and young people with EHCPs.   This funding can be invested 
in mainstream schools and academies, resourced provision, special schools, early 
years’ settings and further education colleges or to make other provision for children 
and young people aged from 0 to 25.

LAs can invest their share of the special educational provision capital fund in:
- creating new (additional) places at good or outstanding provision;
- improving facilities or developing new facilities.

This can be through:
- expansion(s) to existing provision including at the same or a different site;
- reconfiguring provision to make space available for the additional places or 

facilities;
- re-purposing areas so that they meet the needs of pupils with SEND;
- other capital transactions that result in new (additional) places or facilities’ 

improvements;
- investing in provision that is located in another LA where this supports 

providing good outcomes for children in their area.

Following a consultation with parents and schools we submitted a successful bid for 
the maximum allocation of £550,000.  We have been successful in our application to 
use the capital to develop a range of resource provision within existing school 

Page 35



settings.  
The planned spend of the grant allocation is 

Agreed Sites Spend (£K)
Shawclough £ 250.00

Secondary options to 
be considered and 
consulted on

£ 300 .00

For information the detailed description of the proposed module of ASC provision 
within Rochdale is attached in Appendix A

Key Points for Consideration

4. This is a specific capital grant allocation for the development of ASC capacity 
in schools. 

The grant allocation was awarded on the basis of the submitted module, which 
had to be published on the SEND Local Offer, as part of the compliance in 
making the bid for the grant.

The grant is ring-fenced to capital spend around increasing school provision. 
The cost of external school provision is a significant budget pressure and due 
to the shortage in provision, the market cost of external provision is increasing 
year on year.  

We do not have the capability to build a new ASC school to meet demand 
unless it is a free school.  

Costs and Budget Summary

5. This report is seeking agreement to spend this Special Educational Provision 
Capital Grant.  

The spend will be in stages, the initial spend this year is on the development 
of the Primary ASC site at Shawclough Primary School.  We are working on 
the plans around capital spend at Secondary Schools and are in negotiation 
with a number of possible secondary schools across the borough with the 
intention of seeking to locate ASC provision across the borough to ensure 
equal access. 

Risk and Policy Implications

6. The LA has a duty to secure sufficient school places.   Within the SEND 
Code of Practice, parents have the specific right to request specialist external 
provision. Without appropriate provision within the borough, parents are 

Page 36



increasingly seeking to use this right to force the LA into commissioning high 
cost placements and where this is challenged by the LA, the risk is 
increasingly costly SEND Tribunal cases.

Increased external placement adds to the pressure on the SEN Transport 
budget. Transport for children with SEN is a statutory requirement.

There is a risk that while the Department of Education concluded that they 
were satisfied with the progress Rochdale Borough were making around the 
SEND agenda, we are still subject to an annual review and the ASC 
provision will be a key line of enquiry.
 
It will also be a key feature when the next full joint inspection takes place –
the date of this is not known at this stage. 

Consultation

7. The proposal and application for the Capital fund was developed in 
conjunction with a combination of Head Teachers, SENCs and in 
consultation with parents and carers.  

Background Papers None

Appendix A Proposed module of ASC provision within 
Rochdale

For Further Information Contact: Michael Kemp  Tel: 01706 925123 
michael.kemp@rochdale.gov.uk

Page 37



Appendix A

SPECIAL EDUCATIONAL PROVISION CAPITAL FUND PLAN 

Rochdale Borough’s Proposed Model of ASC Resourced Provision 

Given the current known data and the projected increase in numbers of pupils with ASC. 

Current usage of out of area provision to meet unmet need within Borough.

We need to agree/develop a model of provision that supports this growing population, being 
aware also of the pressure around ADHD etc.

Suggested proposal is that we look at a 3-tiered provision.

Use of external  Specialist ASC 
School Provision  

ASC Resourced Provision within 
mainstream settings 

Improved Universal Offer 
within mainstream settings 

through development of ASC 
Champion/training and 

support

Any model needs to describe the current provision, the interface between provisions and 
take a long term view not a simple fix on the ‘here and now’ issues. 

Page 38



Elements of the Model 

Universal offer within mainstream settings: 
 Telephone Helpline
 ASC Champions programme 
 Provision of ASC friendly across mainstream setting 
 ASC Drop-ins 
 Area SENCos/ESKWs 
 RANS consultation and input  (needs to include some holiday cover support)
 ASC Training 
 EP input 
 Equipment and adaptations 

Specific ASC Resourced Provision within mainstream setting: 
 Integrated provision within a mainstream school aims to enable the child/ young person 

to access mainstream provision at a level that they can manage 
 Joint development of specialist TAs & Teachers 
 Time-out session in provision reasonable adjustments 
 Specific SALT and OT input to be commissioned 

ASC Specific Provision 

Current Specialist Provision includes:  
 Provision at Generic Special Schools for children with ASC and LD 
 Brownhill – mixed population – limited capacity to accommodate ASC and SEMH
 Gap and need for ASC Specialist provision for pupils with ASC and MLD or high 

functioning in many areas

Aim is to seek to develop and extend ASC resourced provision but this will be dependent on 
ability to fund such provision through ‘invest to save’ work.
 
Model is based on multi-agency approach/offer.

 ASC Resourced provision will be included as part of the schools offer 
 SALT
 OT 
 EP 
 Outreach/Family worker 
 Holiday support /provision
 HYM 

Plus the specific role of Reintegration Officer to support transition work out of Resourced 
Provision into supported mainstream and transition work.

Resourced Provision 

Children requiring time in ASC Resourced Provision at any point of their educational journey 
can do so in some situations for a short period of time and for others it can be long term. 
Early Years Resourced Provision’s role is to prepare and enable children to attend 
mainstream primary provision – for early years’ provision as many will not have a diagnosis, 
cannot call ASC, suggest Communication & Interaction (C&I). 

So
ci

al
 s

ki
lls

 p
ro

gr
am

m
es

Se
ns

or
y 

ro
om

Q
ui

et
/c

al
m

 s
pa

ce

Page 39



Pathway 

Mainstream Early Years setting with ASC 
Support 

Early Years setting

2-5 year Nursery and Reception 

Early Years Resourced Provision 

Mainstream Primary with 
ASC Support 

Mainstream Primary 
Resourced Provision 

Generic Specialist   
provision with LD 

Secondary 
Provision + ASC 

Support 

Secondary 
Resourced 
Provision 

Generic 
Specialist   

provision with LD 
Redwood  

Brownhill 
ASC & SEMH

Page 40



MODELS 

Early Years 

Early Years Setting

2-5 year Nursery and Reception 

Mainstream Early Years setting 
with ASC Support 

Early Years Resourced Provision 

Page 41



Primary Provision 

Secondary Provision 

Secondary Provision 
+ ASC Support 

Secondary 
Resourced 
Provision 

Generic 
Specialist   

provision with 
LD Redwood  

Commissioned 
provision 

@ to be 
agreed

  

@ to be 
agreed

Secondary Provision 

Primary Provision + 
ASC Support 

Primary 
Resourced 
Provision 

Generic Specialist   
provision with LD 

Commissioned 
provision 

@ 
Newlands

@
Springside

@

Shawclough  

@  to be 
agreed 

Primary Provision 

@ to be 
agreed

@ to be 
agreed

Brownhill 
SEMH

Page 42



1

Report to Cabinet

Date of Meeting 24th July 2018
Portfolio Leader of the Council and 

Cabinet Member for 
Finance

Report Author Victoria Bradshaw

Public Document Public

Savings Programme 2019/20 to 2020/21

Executive Summary

1. This report provides Cabinet Members with: 

 Recommendations regarding Savings Proposals in order to meet the 
budget gap for 2019/20 and 2020/21.

Recommendation

2.1 That Cabinet considers the saving proposals contained in the report as the 
basis for consultation and notes the consultation timetable and process as 
detailed in the report.

Reason for Recommendation

3.1 Cabinet members are required to recommend a balanced Revenue Budget 
and Capital Programme 2019/20 to Budget Council and provisional budgets 
for 2020/21 to 2021/22. The Council is required to set a balanced budget for 
2019/20 by the 11th March 2019.  To enable the achievement of this statutory 
requirement savings proposals are considered to reduce the expenditure of 
the Council.

Key Points for Consideration

4.1

4.1.1

Timetable

The Budget process begins in June with approval, by Cabinet, of the 
assumptions and principles on which the budget is to be based. These are 
used as a part of the determination of the overall budget position and are 

Page 43

Agenda Item 10



2

4.1.2

4.2

4.2.1

4.2.2

4.2.3

4.2.4

4.2.5

currently being incorporated into Service budgets.

Throughout the year we consult on the budget and savings proposals.  
Financial projections are updated as further information becomes available 
from Central Government and other changes, including local decisions. The 
updated budget and feedback from consultations are reported back to Cabinet 
during the year and in February 2019 with recommendations for Budget 
Council, who will in turn set the budget. The timetable for the Revenue Budget 
and Savings Programme is provided at Appendix 1.

Savings Programme 2019/20 to 2020/21

Budget Council 28th February 2018 approved provisional budgets for 2019/20 
and 2020/21. The budget gap identified for General Council Services and 
Aligned Services was £3.6m for 2019/20 and £6.0m for 2020/21. The budget 
position of the Council is reviewed throughout the budget process as more 
information becomes available. Cabinet will receive the first update in 
September.

During April to June Directorates have engaged in producing the saving 
proposals contained in this report for Cabinet Members to consider. A number 
of Budget Review Sessions have been held where officers and members have 
scrutinised service functions, finance and performance matters for each 
Directorate to inform the process and support the delivery of a balanced 
budget for 2019/20.

Saving Proposals are classified as follows:
 Saving proposals not requiring service consultation;
 Service Delivery proposals;
 Workforce proposals being progressed via the Council’s Delegated 

Decision Making process; 
 Proposals being progressed outside the savings programme.

Table 1 summarises the savings proposals being considered within this report 
towards meeting the budget gap for 2019/20 to 2020/21.

Table 1 Savings Proposals 2019/20 to 2020/21

Ongoing One-off Ongoing One-off
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Service Savings Proposals
Proposals not requiring consultation -1,214 -200 -1,492 -100
Outside the process -490 0 -490 0
Service Delivery Proposals -473 0 -574 0

-2,177 -200 -2,556 -100

2019/20 2020/21

The proposals not requiring service consultation are proposals which:

Page 44



3

4.2.6

4.2.7

4.2.8

4.3

4.3.1

4.3.2

4.3.3

 Identify alternative financial resources to continue providing the 
service;

 Generate additional income for the Council without impacting on 
users;

 Improve the efficiency of delivering a service;
 Saving proposals with workforce implications which will be 

consulted on via the Council’s Delegated Decision Making process.

The reductions with no service delivery implications do not require 
consultation.  These proposals generate on going savings of £1.214m ongoing 
and £0.200m one-off savings in 2019/20, and a further £0.278m ongoing and 
£0.100m one-off savings in 2020/21, and are detailed in the private report 
provided separately on this Agenda. There are a number of workforce 
proposals where consultation will be via the Council’s Delegated Decision 
Making process.

Proposals being progressed outside the savings programme will be subject to 
separate reports to Cabinet.

Saving proposals with Service Delivery implications totaling £0.473m in 
2019/20 and a further £0.101m in 2020/21 will be subject to consultation from 
27th July 2018 with stakeholder groups, staff and service users as appropriate 
and are detailed in the private report provided separately on this agenda.

Alternatives Considered

The Council is legally obliged to set a balanced revenue budget. The budget 
setting process is complex and must be undertaken in a planned way. Whilst 
budgets are prepared in accordance with the approved guidelines a number of 
alternative options relating to savings proposals and budget pressures are 
considered as part of the overall budget setting process.

Consideration has been given to a number of options in putting forward the 
savings proposals contained in this report and the report outlines any 
alternatives. To do nothing was not considered to be an option as the Council 
is legally required to set a balanced budget.

Cabinet Members could decide not to implement these proposals and provide 
alternative options to enable a balanced budget to be achieved.

Costs and Budget Summary

5.1 Financial implications are considered in the main body of the report.

Page 45



4

Risk and Policy Implications

6.1

6.2

6.3

6.4

6.5

The Council is required to set a lawful budget for 2019/20 by the by 11th 
March 2019 and there is a risk if we do not responsibly put forward proposals 
for consideration to meet the budget reductions/pressures.

Risk implications have been added where applicable within individual 
detailed reports.  To manage this risk we will supply Cabinet members with 
copies of all available implications to make informed decisions.

Where relevant, specific legal issues have been identified in the individual 
savings proposal reports. Legal advice has also been provided in relation to 
the Equality Act duties, and recent case law decisions on both consultation 
requirements and equality impact assessments.

Advice has been provided on the following:

 The need to ensure that service reductions do not constitute a failure on 
the part of the Council to fulfill statutory duties.

 The need to be aware of contractual arrangements with third parties 
which can only be varied by agreement or which (if that does not prove 
possible) can only be terminated by substantial notice periods and 
consider the financial implications of any variations.

 The need to be aware of restrictions which affect property assets. Some 
have restrictions on usage, some have conditions attached to gifts and 
planning restrictions might apply. On this last aspect, there needs to be 
separation of the Council’s statutory role from that of property owner.

 Some proposals may ultimately involve the transfer of staff with the 
resultant need to undertake statutory consultations.

 Some proposals will involve potential redundancy. This will involve 
statutory consultations.

 Advice on contractual, procurement law matters (including staff related 
matters).

If there are personnel implications arising for the proposals contained within 
this report, these are summarised below:

 Some of these proposals could potentially result in a reduction in the 
number of established posts within the Council and depending on the 
outcome of consultation and final decisions made these will be deleted as 
a consequence of these proposals. 

 The Council will apply its established policies and procedures to identify 
which posts are identified as potentially redundant and which employees 
will be at risk of redundancy. This will include the application of the 
Council’s redundancy selection criteria where this would need to be 
applied.

 Where posts proposed to be deleted are occupied the employee(s) 

Page 46



5

6.6

concerned will become at risk of redundancy.

 All employees affected will be provided with support through the Council’s 
established procedures for dealing with staff that are at risk of 
redundancy.

 Through the application of these policies and procedures, the Council will 
seek to minimize the number of employees who may be compulsory 
redundant.  In this respect, the Council will seek to provide suitable 
alternative employment wherever this is possible and will seek to achieve 
reductions by voluntary measures wherever possible, by seeking 
volunteers for early retirement/voluntary redundancy in areas where staff 
are affected by the proposals.

 The proposals will be subject to full consultation with staff and trade 
unions in line with statutory requirements.   It is considered that the total 
number of jobs affected during the budget setting process is likely to be 
below 100. The Council is preparing to comply with the required statutory 
minimum consultation period of 30 days for less than 100 redundancies 
before making final decisions on its proposals.  In addition, the Council 
will also ensure that the consultation process is meaningful and 
commences when potential redundancies are contemplated, that full 
consideration is given to the outcome and any comments received before 
final decisions are made regarding implementation, which are also legal 
requirements.


Equalities Impacts

Workforce Equality Impact Assessment

A workforce impact assessment will be undertaken to understand how the 
overall proposals   affect the make-up of the workforce.

The Council undertook a workforce EIA for the savings process in previous 
years. The same analysis will be undertaken for the cohort of staff affected 
by the savings proposals in 2019/20 and 2020/21.  A full equalities impact 
assessment will be undertaken following the implementation of the savings 
proposals, at which point we may need to revisit our equalities action plan or 
other policies.

Consultation

7.1

7.2

Consultation is to be undertaken with stakeholder groups, staff and service 
users as appropriate. Consultation will commence consultation on 27th July 
2018 and end on 10th September 2018. 

The report will be presented for consultation to Corporate Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee on 31st July 2018 

Page 47



6

Background Papers Place of Inspection

8. None

For Further Information Contact: Victoria Bradshaw

Tel: 01706 925409, 
Victoria.Bradshaw@Rochdale.Gov.UK

Page 48



7

Appendix 1
Revenue Budget and Savings Programme Timetable

Date Meeting/Event Purpose

2018
Cabinet Cabinet 24th July

Corporate O&S 31st July
1. Savings Programme 2019/20 - 2020/21 - for consultation

Consultation 27 July Phase 1 Consultation Starts

September

Budget Cabinet Budget Cabinet 25th September
1. Discretionary Fees & Charges 2019/20    } 
2. Capital Programme 2019/20 - 2021/22   } For Consultation
3. Revenue Budget 2019/20 - 2021/22         }                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                 
4. MTFS 2019/20 - 2023/24                         

Consultation 10 September Phase 1 Consultation Ends

October

Budget Cabinet Cabinet 30th October
1. Savings Programme 2019/20 - 2020/21 - Post consultation

Budget Cabinet Budget Cabinet 13th November
Corporate O&S 20th November
1. Capital Programme 2019/20 - 2021/22   
2. Revenue Budget 2019/20 - 2021/22                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                               
3. Council Tax and Business Rates Bases 2019/20
4. Discretionary Fees & Charges 2019/20 - Post Consultation
5. Savings Programme 2019/20 - 2020/21 - 2nd round for Consultation

Consultation 14 November Phase 2 Consultation Starts
2019

Budget Cabinet Cabinet 29th January
1. Savings Programme 2019/20 - 2020/21 - 2nd round post consultation
2. Revenue Budget Update 2019/20 - 2021/22

Consultation 4 January Phase 2 Consultation Ends

February

Budget Cabinet Corporate O&S 11th February
Cabinet 12th February
Council 27th February
1. Treasury Management Strategy 2019/20
2. MTFS 2019/20 - 2023/24
3. Local Government Act 2003
4. Revenue Budget and Council Tax 2019/20

July

November

January

Page 49



Document is Restricted

Page 50

Agenda Item 12
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3, 4 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A

of the Local Government Act 1972.


	Agenda
	5 Minutes
	6 Objections to Traffic Order - Blackpits Road & Edenfield Road, Rochdale
	8 Draft Allocations Development Plan Document - Consultation
	9 Capital Investment In Schools 2018/19
	App A - ASC Capital Bid. 140318 including PCV comments

	10 Savings Programme 2019/20 to 2020/21
	12 Savings Programme 2019/20 to 2020/21

